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North High School was completed.

8 The picturesque house at 480

Discover Historic

Because the streetcar provided
cheap, easy access to places of work,
it brought a heavy influx of new resi-
dents to Newtonville. Syndicates and
enterprising individuals found oppor-
tunities for speculative real estate
development on the village’s remain-
ing open land. Walnut Street neigh-
bors Henry Ross and Charles T.
Pulsifer built up Clyde Street on for-
mer Pulsifer farmland between 1890
and 1900.

here are variations on the Colonial

The houses constructed

Revival style, each trimmed with clas-
sically derived ornament that was
probably manufactured at Ross’s
Crafts Street mill. Together, the hous-
es create an unusually fine

streetscape.

Walnut Street was built in 1848 as a
summer cottage for Miss Priscilla
Frothingham of Boston. The original
design for this house blended two
architectural styles. The Greek
Revival style is represented through
the house’s sidehall plan, ground floor
window and door openings, and the
Doric columns which support its inset
veranda. The steep, flared gable roof
reflects the romantic Gothic Revival
style. To further complicate matters,
the three dormer windows on the
front slope of roof were added in the
last quarter of the century and are

Queen Anne in style and character.

Text taken from Discover Historic Newtonville.

Revised and updated by Newton Planning and
Development Department in conjunction with the

Newton Historical Commission. July 2002.

Prosperous Boston businessmen
resided in the large, west—facing hous-
es along Walnut Street as it winds

towards Bullough’s Pond. The Queen

1884) was built for E.K. Wilson, a
paper merchant. Its dominant feature
is an offset, projecting gable with
curving vergeboards and a carved
balustrade. 472 Walnut Street
was built ca. 1892 for Charles Briggs,
who was in the piano business. Its
double front gable contains a pair of
Palladian-style windows, a popular
Colonial Revival feature. This impos-
ing residence has a twin at 275 Mill
Street that was constructed at the

same time.

Photos courtesy of the Jackson Homestead
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Anne house at 462 Walnut Street (ca. .
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ewtonville developed as a
suburban village during the
second half of the 19th centu-
ry. Like the neighboring villages along
the “rushing and thundering Boston
and Albany railroad,” Newtonville
owed the impetus for much of its
growth to its favorable location for
transportation. Daily commuter trains
linking the village to downtown Boston
brought a steady influx of businessmen,
professionals, and tradesmen, who built
houses ranging from simple
wood frame structures
on small lots to
large, elaborate
residences set
among formal

gardens.

Prior to the
advent of subur-
ban development,
several farms occu-
pied the broad, well-
watered plain that underlies most
of Newtonville’s Victorian neighbor-
hoods. Judge Abraham Fuller, a
grandson of one of the territory's first
settlers, operated one of the larger
farms here in the 18th century. Judge
Fuller was an important Revolutionary-
era citizen of Newton, serving as a town
selectman and treasurer, a member of
the State Legislature and a representa-
tive to the Constitutional Convention.
His son-in-law, General William Hull,
retired to the Fuller Farm after the War
of 1812, and enlarged the farmhouse
that once stood on today’s Newton
North High School athletic fields.

During most of the first half of the
19th century, Newtonville remained a

quiet agricultural region known prima-
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rily as the site of the Hull farm. In the
late 1840s, however, real estate opera-
tors, observing widespread interest in
suburban developments in Newton
Corner and West Newton, purchased
small tracts of land near the railroad
line and laid out houselots along sever-

al new streets.

Newtonville offered no compelling
attractions to lure potential suburban
residents, so its first decade of growth
This changed,
however, in 1859 with

the decision to
build Newton'’s

first high school
in the centrally

was slow.

located village.
By the time of
the Civil War,
&((e‘ the village was
firmly established,
with several distinct
neighborhoods and a

small commercial center serving

the needs of its families.

Residences, churches and public
buildings from several phases of
Newtonville’s 19th century develop-
ment are discussed in this walking tour.
The village contains a fine collection of
well-preserved Victorian architecture,
ranging from the austere Greek Revival
of the 1840s through the richly orna-
mented Colonial Revival of the 1890s.
The buildings, situated among gracious,
tree-lined parks and streets planned by
foresighted Victorians, tell a story of
changing culture, technology and taste
which is essential to the identity of 21st
century Newtonville. None of the hous-

es on this tour are open to the public.

The tour begins at the Newton
Senior Center at 345 Walnut Street,
which was formerly the Newtonville
Branch Library. The first building to
occupy this site was the Newton
Club, founded in 1887 to promote a
greater sense of community spirit,
although membership was restricted
to men. When the Classical Revival
Newtonville Branch Library was
built on the site in 1939, it featured
stained glass windows and large, com-
fortable meeting rooms. In 1993, the
building was rehabilitated and

became the new home of the Newton

Senior Center.

The Swedenborgian Church at 19
Highland Avenue was organized in
Newtonville in 1860 when a wood
frame chapel was constructed here.
The stone church was built in front of
the chapel in 1893.
identify the church as a Gothic
Revival style building include pointed

Features that

arch window and door openings, a
square entrance tower with a crenel-
lated parapet (the fortress-like upper
edges of the tower walls) and but-

tresses Wthh brace the walls.

The apartments at 25-31 Highland
Avenue were operated as “Highland
Villa,” a private residential hotel at the
turn of the century. Rounded bay
windows and twin towers recall the
building’s picturesque Queen Anne
style design, although its verandas
have been removed and brick facing
covers the original patterned wood-

shingle exterior.

Highland Avenue was one of the first
suburban streets to be laid out in
Newtonville. The earliest streets,
which include Madison Avenue and
Austin, Otis and Bowers Streets, ran
roughly parallel to the railroad tracks
and were lined with large building
lots. Spacious 100" x 200" houselots
remain visible along the south side of

Highland Avenue. Beginning with

No. 40 and extending westward to
Lowell Avenue, several popular
Victorian architectural styles may be
observed. Common to these styles is
the emphasis placed on certain parts
of the house - window and door open-
ings, rooflines, and porches - by the
application of carved wooden orna-
ment. 40 Highland Avenue (ca. 1870)
represents the Mansard style, while
next door at ] No. 50 (ca. 1872), the
bay window, paired brackets and
round-arched gable windows mark
the Italianate style.

B 1talianate style detailing was applied
to a variety of house forms during its
long period of popularity in
Newtonville (1850s-1880s).  The
square house at 63 Highland Avenue
(ca. 1872) features bracketing at the
porch and eaves, and its low hip roof
is capped by a lantern with round-
arched windows and curving wood
skirts. Across the street, 66
Highland Avenue (ca. 1878) is an L-
shaped plan residence with a highly
ornamented entrance porch and
bracketed eaves. This historic house
is currently being renovated and will

be developed into townhouses.

E The sidehall plan house was well suit-
ed to long, narrow urban and subur-
ban houselots. The residence at 90
Highland Avenue, with its gable end
to the street, is an unusually large
example of this plan type. Its
Italianate style design features include
several two-story bay windows. The
bay was an element introduced in that
period which remained popular
through the rest of the 19th century.
This property is being converted into
a three-family dwelling.

As Highland Avenue climbs West
Newton Hill, the scale and character of
the street begins to change. During the
Victorian era, wealthier families were
attracted to picturesque areas that

offered vistas and park-like settings.

Several prosperous Boston business-
men built imposing residences on
Newtonville’s side of the hill.

E Architect William C. Richardson
designed the house at 109 Highland
Avenue for himself in 1888. As a
partner in the Boston firm Hartwell
and Richardson, he designed several
of Newtonville’s major buildings. The
Richardson house presents a marked
contrast in character to the Italianate
style residences on lower Highland
Avenue. Its wood-shingle wall cover-
ing, sweeping bays and window
hoods are characteristic features of
the Shingle Style, first popular in
New England resort towns like Bar
Harbor and Manchester-by-the-Sea
in the 1880s.

E The

Massachusetts
Extension 1n 1962

construction of  the

Turnpike

took a heavy toll
on Newtonville.
Fifteen hous-
es on the
north side

of Austin
Street were
demolished
for the high-
way. The mod-
est Italianate style

double house at 66-68
Austin Street (ca. 1860) is
typical of the working class housing
that once lined Austin Street adjacent

to the railroad tracks.

The well-preserved Gothic Revival
John Fenno House at 171 Lowell
Avenue was built ca. 1854 at the cor-
ner of Walnut Street and Madison
Avenue and was moved to its present
location around 1885. The house,
which is listed in the National
Register of Historic Places, features
eared moldings over the windows,
diamond-shaped windows, a bracket-

ed bay window and an uncommon

wall dormer over the entrance porch.

Though additions to a house can
provide insight into its ownership pat-
terns, they can also obscure the origi-
nal structure. Careful observation of
the residence at 157 Lowell Avenue
reveals the original south-facing farm-
house, built ca. 1833, which is sand-
wiched between wings added later in
the century. An overall covering of
wood shingles helps to unify the ram-

bling structure.

The Queen Anne style house at 79
Lowell Avenue was built by builder
Henry Ross in 1884 and was soon
purchased by Edwin Cram, a book-
keeper in Boston. The Cram House,
one of the best preserved 19th centu-
ry homes in the neighborhood, dis-
plays many distinctive Queen Anne

features, including decorative
shingling, an  offset
gabled pavilion, an

arched

entrance porch,

inset

belt courses, a
carved wood
sunflower
ornament, and
an exterior

chimney with
molded terra cotta

tiles.

171 Lowell Avenv®

25 Prescott Street, con-
structed in 1871, is the oldest house
on the street and was built by J. E.
Abbott, who owned adjacent parcels
of land. George Morse, a Boston
lawyer, purchased the house in the
1880s.
exemplifies the Second Empire style

The well-maintained house

with its polychrome slate-covered
mansard roof, boxy massing and dou-

ble doors with long glass panels.

The Italianate style house at 53
Central Avenue, built in 1871, is
capped by an offset gable roof. A

boxed cornice with slotted, paired
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brackets runs at the eaves. A veranda
encloses this entrance with three bays
on the east. Turned posts with incised
brackets comprise the ornament of
the veranda that has a pedimented
entrance bay. A rising sun carving
and a dentil band are incorporated

into the bay.

Three of the houses on Turner
Street exhibit the Colonial Revival
style, while the remaining two are
Italianate. Construction on these

houses began in 1867 and ended in

1910, illustrating the continued devel-

opment of this area. Many of these

houses, initially constructed as single-
family homes for residents who com-
muted to work in Boston, have since

been divided into multi-family units.

The two-story Queen Anne style
house (ca. 1894-95) at 16 Page Road
has a multi-planed roof, a two-story
polygonal tower topped with a bell-
shaped roof, molded belt courses at
each floor, and a richly ornamented
porch. The house retains its original

six-over-one sash windows.

The three houses at 40, 34
and 30 Foster Street are the work
of Higgins and Nickerson, prolific
Newtonville builder-contractors in
the late 19th and early 20th centuries.
The partnership constructed many
large single-family and two-family
residences in the northern half of the
village on Linwood and Lowell
Avenues, Page Road, Proctor Street,
and Prescott Street. Like the Foster
Street houses, they range from the
Shingle Style (No. 34, ca. 1906) to
variations of the Colonial Revival
(No. 30, ca. 1908) to a combination of
Stick and Shingle styles with Tudor
influences (No. 40, ca. 1910).

The Central Congregational
Church (ca. 1895) at 218 Walnut
Street was designed by Hartwell and
Richardson and is on the National

Register of Historic Places. The bold
geometric forms, rock-faced stone
construction, and simple stone trim
which characterize the church’s
design are features of the
Richardsonian Romanesque style,
named after America’s foremost archi-
tect of the 1870s and 1880s, Henry
Hobson Richardson. His interest in
the Romanesque architecture of
southern France was expressed
through designs for buildings such as
Trinity Church in Boston’s Copley
Square and the Newton Centre Train
Station.

The building at 288 Walnut
Street was originally constructed as
the Methodist Episcopal Church in
1863. The present sandstone struc-
ture was built around the walls of the
original brick building as part of an
expansion program Iin 1924. More
recently, the original steeple has been
replaced with a modern tower. Today

the structure is used as an office

building.

Hartwell and Richardson also
designed the Masonic Temple at the
corner of Walnut Street and
Newtonville Avenue. The building,
dedicated in 1895, contained commer-
cial space on the ground floor, with a
public assembly hall, the first
Newtonville branch library and the
Masons’ quarters above. The promi-
nent corner tower, round-arched win-
dow openings and tall hip roof punc-
tuated with steep dormer windows
underscore the vertical emphasis of
Hartwell & Richardson’s design. The
distinctive band of fleurs de lis visible
at the eaves of the temple is made of

terra cotta.

Newtonville’s 19th century com-
mercial district was located entirely
north of the Masonic Temple. With the
exception of the Newton Club, Walnut
Street was lined with residences from

the Temple southward. Commercial

enterprise expanded during the 1920s, reflecting a trend that affected each
of Newton’s northern villages, and many of the one-story commercial build-

ings on Walnut Street date from that time.

The redbrick Claflin School (ca. 1889) located at 86-112 Washington
Parl was constructed in front of a wood frame grammar school that occu-
pied the rear of the site. The school’s conservative Romanesque Revival
design continues the round-arched theme observed in the Masonic
Temple and the Central Congregational Church. From the late 1940s to
the early 1970s, the Newton Junior College used the School, and in the
1980s the building was transformed into condominiums. The property is
listed in the National Register of Historic Places.

Dustin Lancey, a real estate developer, laid out Washington
Parl in 1865. The subdivision contained 31 house lots of approximate-
ly one-half acre each. The design of Washington Park around an oblong
central green strip parallels, on a suburban scale, contemporary develop-
ment in the Back Bay section of Boston. Most of the earliest residences
constructed on the park, exemplified by the wood frame houses at No.’s

55, 47 and 39, were capped by slate mansard roofs.

The New Arts Center in Newton, located at 61 Washington Park,
occupies the old Universalist Church (ca. 1873). The Newton Junior
College used the Gothic Revival style church, which lost its wood belfry
and steeple in the 1938 hurricane, before the non-profit New Arts Center
moved there in 1977.

Complex massing with many wall and roof projections is a characteris-
tic of large Queen Anne style houses. The residence at 5 Park Place,
built for Arthur Soden in 1890, achieves that effect through an asymmet-
rical arrangement of gables, towers, a balcony, and a broad veranda.
Soden’s houselot extended south to Otis Street, and like many other
Newtonville residents of his day, he chose to subdivide it, putting through

Park Place at the same time his mansion was being built.

The Queen Anne style was not restricted to large residences. When
applied to the 19th century counterpart of the tract house, the Queen

Anne made use of simple textures and details. Turned porch posts, a belt

course of cut wood shingles, and an unusual three-part window on the
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south wall of 15 Park Place create an attractive effect on an inexpensive
house which Arthur Soden built as a rental property in 1890.

The double house at 350-352 Cabot Street (ca. 1872) is capped by what once
was a fishscale slate mansard roof. The Mansard appealed to practical Victorians
because when lit by dormer windows, it provided an extra floor of usable space.
Mechanical scroll saws invented during mid-century produced architectural
ornament like the brackets seen at the eaves of this house. Brackets of all shapes
and sizes, first applied to Italianate style designs, were used by American builders

for more than 50 years.

James Smith, a local housewright, built the Italianate style residence at 375
Cabot Street in 1856.

Reverend John Worcester, the minister of the

Swedenborgian Church, was its first owner. The street facade of this house is
composed of wood planking carved and laid up to imitate stone blocks. Like
many Newtonville buildings, this residence was updated as architectural fashion
changed; its fanlight doorway and elaborate deck balustrade are Colonial Revival
elements popular at the turn of the 20th century.

Across Cabot Street, the house at No. 372 (ca. 1878) demonstrates the freedom
with which Newton builders celebrated the versatility of wood. Balloon frame
construction (2” x 4” wood studs), introduced in the northeast in the 1850s, made
this house’s complex, towered form possible. Scroll and jigsaws produced the
tremendous variety of inexpensive pierced, scalloped and molded wooden orna-

ment.

The towered Mansard style house
at 398 Walnut Street (ca. 1875) was
built for Charles T. Pulsifer, whose
father moved to Newtonville in 1846.
C. T. Pulsifer was a paper merchant
who, like many of his neighbors, com-
muted to work in downtown Boston.

Today, the property is used as an
office building.

Charles S. Pulsifer (father of
Charles T. Pulsifer) married Eliza
Trowbridge in 1839, and acquired 15
acres of land from her father, Nathan
Trowbridge,
in 1846. On
that land,
Pulsifer built
the Greek
Revival style
residence at
424 Walnut
Street 1n
1848. The
house has wit-
nessed many
changes since
then but still
includes origi-
nal features such as the entrance
porch supported by Doric columns,
the classical entablature at the eaves,
and the eared moldings around the

six-by-nine sash parlor windows.

Walnut Street evolved into one of
Newton’s major north-south trans-
portation routes during the City’s
streetcar era (1890-1930). To the
south, the Walnut Street line connected
with the Commonwealth Avenue Street
Railway, then ran to Newton
Highlands and Lower Falls. At
Newtonville Square, it intersected the
east-west trolley lines that ran parallel
to the Boston and Albany Railroad
tracks, and in the northern section of
the wvillage, it linked with the

Watertown Street line.

Visible across the Newton North
High School athletic fields is the

Governor William Claflin house at 73
Elm Road, now a red and white stuc-
co apartment building. Claflin, who
made a fortune in the wholesale boot
and shoe business, was Governor of
Massachusetts from 1869-1871. He
was also a supporter of women's suf-
frage and abolition and served on the
boards of Wellesley College and

Boston University.

The Claflin home, called “The Elms,”
was built in 1855 on the site of
the 18th century Fuller-Hull House
and originally
stood 1in the
middle of the
present athle-
tic grounds,
surrounded
by large elm
trees, gardens,
ponds, and
numerous out-
buildings. The

24-acre estate

Newton North High School Aerial View was one of
ca. 1930

many parcels
of Newtonville
land owned by the ex-Governor.
During the 1870s and 1880s, he was
very active in the suburban real estate
market as a seller of house lots and
owner of numberous rental proper-

ties.

After ten years of debate,
Newtonville was chosen as the site of
the first Newton High School, built in
1859 on Walnut Street. The school was
expanded and remodeled in the elabo-
rate Second Empire (Mansard) style in
1874. A continuously growing Newton
school-age population created the need
for the Newton Classical High School,
which replaced the original structure in
1898, and the Newton Technical High
School, constructed to the southwest of
the new building in 1905. The entire
complex, including a gymnasium build-
ing and Building III (ca. 1925), was
demolished in 1973 when Newton



